A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, January 27, 2015
At
5:15 p.m,
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 041-23-15

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 January 27, 2015
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
together to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 13, 2015.
(Approval recommended) (p. 4)

b. Consideration of a revised organizational chart and job description for the Light & Power
Department. (Approval recommended) (Arends/Schroeder) (p. 7)

Ttems Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Consideration of City Commission Resolution regarding West Front Street reconstruction
funding level. (Arends) (p. 13)

b. Consideration of Six Year Capital Improvements Plan — 2015. (Arends/staff) (p. 16)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.

1. Strategic Plan — 2014 Year End Review. (Arends/Taylor) (p. 26)
2. Presentation of September 30, 2014 (first quarter) financial position. (Myers-
Beman) (p. 31)




Light and Power Board
Regular Meeting

C. From Board.

7. Public Comment

st

January 27, 2015




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, January 13, 2015

Board Members -
Present; Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Pat McGuire, Bob Spence, Jan Geht
Absent: Jeff Palisin, John Taylor

Ex Officio Member -
Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager

Others: W. Peter Doren, Scott Menhart, Karla Myers-Beman, Tom Olney, Kelli

Schroeder, Stephanie Tvardek, Blake Wilson

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Vice Chairman Geht.

Vice Chairman Geht announced items 2a, 2b1 and 2b2 would be pulled from the Consent
Calendar for full discussion.

Ttem 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

a, Removed fiom the Consent Calendar
b. Removed from the Consent Calendar

Ttems Removed from the Consent Calendar

d. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 9, 2014.

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by McGuire that the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of
December 9, 2014 be approved.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor and Palisin absent)
b. Consideration of approving amended Board Policies.
Karla Myers-Beman clarified this item should read “Computer, Internet and Electronic
Communications Policy” instead of “Computer, Internet and Email Policy”, and the same change
should be made to the recommended motion.
1. Computer, Internet and Electronic Communications Policy.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

Moved by McGuire, scconded by Spence, that the Board adopts the amended Computer, Internet
and Electronic Communications Policy as amended with an immediate effective date.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor and Palisin absent)




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 January 13, 2015

c. Consideration of approving amended Board Policies.
1. Family Medical Leave Act Policy.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Kelli Schroeder, Manager of Human Resources & Communications
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Moved by Spence, seconded by McGuire, that the Board adopts the amended Family Medical
Leave Act Policy as amended with an immediate effective date.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor and Palisin absent)

Item 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

None.

1tem 4 on the Agenda being New Business

a. Fiscal year 2013-14 Audit presentation.

Moved by Spence, sec
June 30, 2014 be acce

Item S on the

enda bein ) intments
ﬁ_m_g_m’_—\;
None.

Item 6 on the Agenda bemgReports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
None.
b, From Staff.

1. Nate Elkins, Influence Design Forum, LLC, presented the West Front Street
Redevelopment Project.

The following individuals addressed the Board:




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 January 13, 2015

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Tim Lodge, City Engineer

Blake Wilson, System Engineer
Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Karla Myers-Beman read for the record comments emailed from Chairman Taylor.
2. Karla Myers-Beman presented the Fiber Optic Fund 2015-16 operating budget.

3. Karla Myers-Beman spoke regarding a letter received from the Fire Department
regarding a recent electric demonstration by TCL&P employees.

C. From Board,

None.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman Taylor declaré jour it0:53 p.m.

/st IGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board g
From: Kelli Schroeder, Manager of HR & Communications ﬂ(__,w
Date: January 21, 2015 d
Subject: Organizational Chart and Revised Administrative Position

As you may recall, on February 25, 2014 the Board approved eliminating the Staff Engineer
position and reassigning those duties to the Operations Manager. In order to officially capture the
direct oversight role that this position will have with both operations and engineering, staff is
recommending that the title of this position be changed to Manager of Operations and
Engineering, and the job description is updated to reflect the additional duties of this combined
position. The pay range will remain unchanged.

Both the Organizational Chart and job description have been included in your packet for your
consideration of approval

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar mean’s you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY )

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART AND JOB
DESCRIPTION FYOR THE MANAGER OF OPERATIONS AND ENGINEERING AS
PRESENTED.




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
JOB DESCRIPTION

MANAGER OF OPERATIONS & ENGINEERING

Supervised By: Executive Director
Supervises: Line Superintendent

TCL&P Engineering Department Staff

Position Summary:

Under the general direction of the Executive Director, manages and divects all aspects of Light &
Power Engineering, service operations, and power production including the operation and
maintenance of transmission and distribution facilitics. Supervises assigned staff including the
Line Superintendent, System Engineer and Field Engineer and in the absence of the Line
Superintendent and Field Engineering, oversees the line crews, metering, dispatch, signals and
power production and generation staff.

Essential Job Functions:

An employee in this position may be called upon to do any or all of the following essential functions. These examples do not
include all of the duties which the employee may be expected to perform. To perform this job successfully, an individual must be
able to perform each essential function satisfactorily.

1. Plans and coordinates work required to efficiently repair and maintain electric
transmission and distribution systems. Prioritizes work, assigns staff, and coordinates
work assignments with the Line Superintendent.

2. Oversees, directs and manages employees assigned to the Engineering Department
including monitoring work output, employee performance and recommending
disciplinary action, if required.

3. Designs and develops systems and methods to implement orderly electric system
modifications without service interruptions.

4. Develops and directs preventive maintenance programs o ensure minimal service
disruption.
5. Provides engineering expertise and assists with determining and planning system needs.

Determines most appropriate methods and materials for service improvements.

6. Provides direct oversight over engineer cost estimating, budgeting and overall scheduling
of overhead and underground distribution construction required to implement work plans,
protection studies, line maintenance and the extension of distribution lines required to
adequately serve existing and new customers.




Manager of Operations & Engineering

Page 2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

Oversees the scheduling and coordination of field work between TCL&P and outside
construction and/or engineering personnel with engineering functions, assists in the
preparation and fulfillment of legal contracts and documents and performs necessary
inspections and investigations.

Recommends and implements new or improved engineering standards, practices or
methods.

Assists in developing operating and capital budgets and administers budgets throughout
the fiscal year assuring conformance with fiscal goals and expense limitations.

Oversees records management related to the operations of TCL&P. Ensures compliance
with applicable regulatory requirements and prepares and submits required repoxts.

Prepares and administers contracted services including, but not limited to, tree trimming
and line construction work, this includes managing the bid process and issuance of
purchase orders as necessary.

Assists the Manager of Telecommunications and Technology in the development,
implementation, operation and maintenance of the supervisory control and data
acquisition (SCADA) system and assures its utilization complies with established safety
and operating procedures and assists with system administration and field installation of
automation equipment.

Monitors compliance of the switching orders and switching procedures for manual
system operation and automated system operation through the supervisory control and
data acquisition (SCADA) system.

Participates in short and long range system planning processes

Represents the electric utility at meetings and in communications with engineers,
regulatory agencies and consultants. Confers with a variety of internal and external
contacts regarding operating and service issues.

Represents the utility by serving as a board member at the Michigan Public Power
Agency meetings in the Executive Director’s or Controller’s absence. Makes
recommendations to the Executive Director regarding decisions required for the
administration of Light & Power’s interests within the MPPA.

Keeps abreast of changes in electric distribution technology and regulations through
attendance at conferences and meetings, contacts with other professionals, reading

literature and participating in professional organizations.

Performs other duties as assigned.




Manager of Operations & Engineering
Page 3

Required Knowledge, Skills, Abilities and Minimum Qualifications:

The requirements lisied below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to
perform the essential functions of the position. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perforin the job.

° Educational requirements include a Bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering or a
related field, Licensure as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) preferred.

* Experience requirements include ten years of engineering and operations work within an
electric utility, along with a minimum three years of supervisory experience

. State of Michigan Vehicle Operator’s License.

. Considerable knowledge of the principles and practices of designing and developing
substations and electric distribution and transmission systems along with the operation
and maintenance of each.

* Working knowledge of clearance and tagging procedures.

. Basic understanding of construction practices, equipment and materials.

. Working knowledge of SCADA system operations and use.

. Considerable knowledge of National Electric Safety Codes, OSHA regulations, and other
codes and regulations governing power transmission and distribution.

. Ability to coordinate, schedule, assign, prioritize and supervise the work of skilled utility
workers.
. Ability to effectively communicate and present ideas and concepts orally and in writing

and make presentations in public forum.

. Ability to critically assess situations, solve problems and work effectively under stress,
within deadlines and changes in work priorities.

. Ability to establish effective working relationships and use good judgment, initiative and
resoutcefulness when dealing with employees, vendors, manufacturers, contractors, other
public utility professionals, administrators, regulators and the public.

. Ability to use basic office equipment such as telephone, calculator, photocopier, fax,
personal computer and applicable software applications such as word processing,
spreadsheet, database, and applications used in electrical system modeling and
automated drafting.




Manager of Operations & Engineering
Page 4

° In addition to the above requirements, all positions require the ability to read, write,
speak and understand the English language as necessary for the position; the ability to
follow written and oral instructions. Employees are also expected to possess and maintain
arecord of orderly, law-abiding citizenship, sobriety, integrity and loyalty as it pertains to
and reflects upon their employment. Employees must be physically and mentally able to
perform the essential duties of their position without excessive absences.

Physical Demands and Work Environment:

The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of the job. Reasonable accommodations miay be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works both in an office and in
the field. The employee is regularly required to communicate in person and by telephone, read
regular and small print, view and produce written and electronic documents and enter data on a
computer keyboard. The employee must be mobile in both an office and field setting, stand, sit,
stoop, walk and kneel, use hands to finger, handle, or feel and reach with hands and arms. The
employee must occasionally lift and/or move items of light weight and must frequently operate a
vehicle to travel to other locations.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is also required to work in the field to
inspect work projects. While on project sites, the employee is occasionally exposed to fumes or
airborne particles, outside weather conditions and moving mechanical equipment and the
potential threat of electric shock. The noise level in the office work environment is usually quiet
to moderate, but may become loud on project sites,

November 2014

11




12

) " mm . wzm“ﬁ @ (s) (1) (®) ®
— 1Y¥3d ] )
NVIDINHDIL 43814 st e SIYNDIS ONI¥ILIN SHIYOM NI NOILINAOYd ¥3IMOd 43¢33 3HOLS AV3H
L | | | | |
|
(0) u (t) (1) (1)
1STIVID3dS SI9 Y33INIONZ QT3 YIINIONI NILSAS INIGNZLNI¥IANS 3N
| | |
|
(1) (1) (1) (1)
S SINNOIY ONIYZINION3 SNOLLYDIN NG (t)
e s A 2 SIDIAYIS % SNOLLY¥3AO % SIMNOSIY HITIONINOGD
ASEING 40 ¥IDOVNYIN 40 ¥IDVNYIN NYINNH 40 ¥3DVNYI
[ | | || | |

(t)
LNVISISSY NINQY

HOL1D3¥1Q IALLNDIXI

(1)

= T3ISNNOD TYH3INID

SHOLJ34IA 40 a¥v0g

ueyo [euoneziuedio ayy ul adueyo e mﬁmuwuc_D
(82) 562 18207 ¥NAAN
(0T) 23S aapensiuwpy

‘puasal

}Mey) |euonieziuesio 4ISO40Yd

HIMOd ¥ LHOI'T

AlLlD 3IS¥3IAVHEL




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

- EST. 1912

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: January 21, 2015

Subject: City Commission Resolution

Attached is a Resolution approved by the City Commission at its January 20™ meeting on a 4-1
vote. The Resolution requests that TCL&P provide financial funding for the West Front Street
Reconstruction Project in the amount of $652,000. The project will be completed in 2015.

Also attached are estimates that were included in the last board meeting’s packet, the full and
base design level. GRP Engineering, Inc. confirmed if only the existing high level lighting were
to be replaced the cost would be $265,000, the $245,000 shown on the base level design plus
$20,000 for the primary service.

This meeting agenda also includes consideration of approval of the Six Year Capital
Improvements Plan — 2015 (Plan); so it is appropriate that the Board discuss this Resolution in
advance of that agenda item. Staff and the City are seeking a decision from the Board on what
amount to include in the Plan that will be forwarded to the City Commission and Planning
Commission for their consideration of approval,

Staff has no specific recommendation regarding this issue. Funding the project in-part or in-full
will not require any immediate increase in utility rates.

13




The City of Traverse City 400 Boardman Avenue

Office of the City Clerk

GOVERNMENTAL CENTER

Traverse City, Ml 49684
(231) 922-4480
tcclerk@traversecitymi.gov

Because,

Because,

Because,

Because,

Because,

Because,

Because,

Because,

Resolution Requesting Street Lighting Funding Participation
from Traverse City Light and Power for the
2015 West Front Street Reconstruction Project

the State of Michigan Legislature created the Roads and Risks Reserve Fund,
using $230 million in one-time General Fund revenue as part of the Fiscal Year
2014 General Government budget;

the City of Traverse City’s West Front Street Reconstruction Project was one of
the 103 state and local transportation projects made possible through the special
appropriation of the Roads and Risks Reserve Fund and received $1,000,000 in
funding;

the West Front Street Reconstruction Project is part of a broader effort to
implement the City of Traverse City’s Corridors Master Plan;

the West Front Street Reconstruction Project serves an economic development
function through placemaking and extending the built environment that
characterizes the traditional core downtown area;

the West Front Street Reconstruction Project will leverage State-appropriated
funding for transportation improvements that have a community-wide benefit by
utilizing multiple funding sources within the City of Traverse City’s control;

the West Front Street Reconstruction Project is being implemented in conjunction
with the replacement of the West Front Street Bridge Replacement Project and
thus investing in excess of $2,500,000 combined between the two projects;

the Traverse City Light and Power Department has approved a streetscape
improvement project as part of its Six-Year Capital Improvement Plan in
conjunction with planned construction on West Front Street, including within the
West Front Street Reconstruction Project limits;

maximizing the level of public investment in the West Front Street
Reconstruction Project will encourage a greater level of private investment in the
project itself and as a result of the project; now therefore, be it

14




Resolution Requesting Street Lighting Funding Participation from Traverse City Light and Power
Pg.2

Resolved, that the City of Traverse City City Commission requests that the Traverse City
Light and Power Board authorizes spending $652,000 to fund street lighting
improvements as part of the West Front Street Reconstruction Project.

[ hereby certify that the above Resolution was
adopted by the Traverse City, City Commission at
its Regular Meeting held on January 20, 2015, in
the Commission Chambers of the Governmental
Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City,
Michigan.

(L0 g 4/

Benjamin C.\Marenteue, CMC, City Clerk

15




TRAVERSE CiTY LIGHT & POWER

WEST FRONT STREET LIGHTING - BRIDGE TO DIVISION STREET
FULL DESIGN (HI-LEVEL, LOW-LEVEL, PEDESTRIAN & DECORATIVE CIRCUITS})
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

ITEM]|ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS LABOR MATERIAL TOTAL |EXTENDED TOTAL
1 |Trenching (Feet) 3300 $8.00 $2.00 $10.00 $33,000
2 |Directionat Boring (Feet) 300 $14.00 $4.00 $18.00 $5,400
3 |1" PVC Conduit (Spare Wi-fi) 3300 $1.00 $1.00 $2.00 $6,600
4 |1" PVC Conduit (Spare - Cameras) 3300 $1.00 $1.00 $2.00 $6,600
5 |[1-1/4" Conduit {Lights) 3980 $1.00 $1.15 $2.15 $8,557
6 |2" Conduit (Lights/Receptacles) 3300 $1.25 $1.25 $2.50 $8,250
7 |3" Conduit {(Power Peds) 3300 $1.50 $1.50 $3.00 $9,900
8 [4" Conduit {Primary) 0 $2.00 $2.00 $4.00 $0
9 |Handholes 78 $250.00 $180.,00 $430.00 $33,540
10 |#250kCM AL Cable (Power Peds) 3300 $1.70 $9.75 $11.45 $37,785
11 [#6 AL 600V Cable {Hi-Level Lts) 3795 $2.00 $0.56 $2.56 $9,715
12 |#2 CU 600V RHW (Dec Lt's & Rec) 3795 $2.50 $2.25 $4.75 $18,026
13 {#12 CU 600V RHW (Fixtures/Rec) 3340 $1.50 $1.75 $3.25 $10,855
14 |#2 AL 15kV Cable (3@ Circuit Feet) 300 $6.00 $4.50 $10.50 $3,150
15 |36 Padmount Transformer 1 $700.00] $8,000.00] $8,700.00 $8,700
16 |15kV Elbows, Terminations, & Arresters 8 $125.00 $75.00 $200.00 $1,200
17 |Equipment Grounding 1 $365.00 $125.00 $490.00 $490
18 |Street Light Controller 1 $2,000.00] $5,000.00f $7,000.00 $7.000
19 |Strest Light Foundation (Low-Level) 37 $300.00 $125.00 $425.00 $15,725

20 |Street Light Foundation (High-Level) 31 $650.00 $200.00 $850.00 $26,350
21 |Street Lights (Low-Level/Laminated) 37 $250.00] $3,328.00|] $3,578.00 $132,386
22 [Sitreet Light (High-Level) 31 $500.00] $1,745.00] $2,245.00 $69,595
23 |Secondary Connectors (Handholes) 312 $85.00 $20.00 $105.00 $32,760
24 |Fused Connectors (Lt/Rec) 278 $50.00 $10.00 $60.00 $16,680
25 |Mobilization, Insurance & Bonding Lot $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0
Subtotal $502,000
High Level Lights $245,000 Contingency {15%) $75,000
Low Level Lights $262,000 Engineering Design {10%) $50,000
Hollday Qutlet Circuit  $42,000 Construction Inspection (5%) $25,000
Wi-Fi Conduits  $10,000 Total Estimated Project Cost $652,000

Security Camera Conduits  $10,000

Power Peds $63,000

Primary Service $20,000

Notes:

1. All costs are estimated as 2015 construction costs.
2. Cost estimate based on proposed streetscape lighting & receptacle system including high-level, low-level,
and pedstrian Jights plus a decorative lighting circuit, power pedestals, and conduits for future wi-fi & cameras.
3. Estimate includes costs to remove existing high-level lights, resize & repaint, install new foundations, and

13

reinstall retrofitted lights.

-0576.01

1/9/2015

153




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
WEST FRONT STREET LIGHTING - BRIDGE TO DIVISION STREET
BASE DESIGN (HI-LEVEL, LOW-LEVEL, & DECORATIVE CIRCUITS)
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

ITEMJiTEM DESCRIPTION UNITS LABOR MATERIAL | TOTAL JEXTENDED TOTAL
1 |Trenching (Feet) 3300 $8.00( $2.00 $10.00 $33,000
2 |Directional Boring (Feet) 300 $14.00 $4.00 $18.00 $5,400
3 |1" PVC Conduit (Spare Wi-fi) 0 $1.00 $1.00 $2.00 $0
4 11" PVC Conduit (Spare - Cameras) 0 $1.00 $1.00 $2.00 $0
5 [1-1/4" Conduit (Lights) 3980 $1.00 $1.15 $2.15 $8,557
6 |2" Conduit {Lights/Recepfacles) 3300 $1.25 $1.25 $2.50 $8,250
7 |3" Conduit {Power Peds) 0 $1.50 $1.50 $3.00 $0
8 |4" Conduit (Primary) 0 $2.00 $2.00 $4.00 $0
9 |Handholes 73 $250.00 $180.00 $430.00 $31,390
10 [#250kCM AL Cable {Power Pads) 0 $1.70 $9.75 $11.45 $0
11 |#6 AL 600V Cable (Hi-Level Lis) 3795 $2.00 $0.56 $2.56 $9,715
12 |#2 CU 600V RHW (Dec Lt's & Reg) 3795 $1.25 $1.15 $2.40 $9,108
13 |12 CU 600V RHW (Fixtures/Rec) 3340 $1.50 $1.75 $3.25 $10,855
14 |#2 AL 15kV Cable (3@ Circuit Feet) 300 $6.00 $4.50 $10.50 $3,1650

15 |3@ Padmount Transformer 1 $700.00] $8,000.00{ $8,700.00 $8,700
16 115kV Elbows, Terminations, & Arresters 6 $125.00 $75.00 $200.00 $1,200
17 |Equipment Grounding 1 $365.00 $125.00 $490.00 $490
18 |Street Light Controller 1 $2,000.00| $5,000.00] $7,000.00 $7,000
19 |[Street Light Foundation (Low-Level) 37 $300.00 $125.00 $425.00 $15,725
20 {Street Light Foundation {High-Level) 31 $650.00 $200.00 $850.00 $26,350
21 {Street Lights (Low-Level, Hook) 37 $250.00] $1,200.00] $1,450.00 $53,650
22 |Street Light (High-Level) 31 $350.00] $1,745.00] $2,095.00 $64,945
23 |Secondary Connectors (Handholes) 292 $85.00 $20.00 $105.00 $30,660
24 |Fused Connectors (Lt/Rec) 204 $50.00 $10.00 $60.00 $12,240
25 |Mobilization, Insurance & Bonding Lot $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0
Subtotal $340,000
High Level Lights $245,000 Conlingency (15%) $51,000
Low Level Lights $177,000 Engineering Design (10%) $34,000
Primary Service  $20,000 Construction Inspection (5%) $17,000
Total Estimated Project Cost $442,000

Notes:

1. All costs are estimated as 2015 constructicn costs.

2. Cost estimate based on high-levetl lighting only. No decorative lighting or receptacle circuits included.
3. Estimate includes all new light fixtures, foundations, conduit, handholes, conductors & connections.

13-0578.01 17812015

15b




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: January 21, 2015
Subject: Six Year Capital Improvements Plan - 2015

Attached for your consideration of approval is the Six Year Capital Improvements Plan - 2015
(Plan) as prepared by and amended by staff after review with the Board at a prior meeting.

After hearing input from the Board, staff has removed the generation project from the Plan. This
was a conceptual project in the industrial park, but several board members felt there was simply
not enough information about the project at this time to even conceptually include it in the Plan.
Staff agrees. We will continue to work with the interested parties and provide detailed
information to the Board as it becomes available for possible inclusion in a future year’s Plan.

All other new and changed projects have been reviewed and updated with the latest cost
estimates, Staff will again briefly review these projects at the meeting and seek any further
Board input or provide clarification to the Board.

Staff recommends approval of the Plan as presented. If after Board discussion you agree
with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY )
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT THE
SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —2015 AS PRESENTED (OR AS
AMENDED) TO THE CITY MANAGER FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE
CITY COMMISSION AND CITY PLANNING COMMISSION,

16




TRAVERSE CITY

Y LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN — 2015

),
e

GENERATION:

Community Solar Garden Phase I1

Location: Local solar generation either inside or outside city limits

Character: Free standing solar panels

Extent: Installation of solar panels to provide up to 84.6 KW of generation.

Estimated Cost: $250,000 — Amount to be recovered through 25 yem Sun Shares to customers

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16
DISTRIBUTION and SUBSTATION:

Line Improvements, Extensions, and New Service
Location: Throughout the entire service area
Character: Construction/replacement of over
involving the use of wire, poles, meters, cabine

d and underground distribution facilities
‘and transfor mers. '

Location:
will be completed.
Engineer ing

poles, efc,
E\tenr Extent..

Sp1 lce St amI deSIgn of the 0.- ‘chard Helghts area.
Estimated Cost: $3.6 Million

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16 through 2020-21 (Annual Program)

17




ﬂ\\

) TRAVERSE CITY
(

<V LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN — 2015

2=
S

DISTRIBUTION and SUBSTATION (continued):

Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion (CHANGE)

Location: Starting from behind Hall Street Substation crossing the Boardman River South
along Pine Street east along State St crossing the Union St Bridge ending in Lay Park.
Character: Convert existing overhead distribution facilities to underground.

Extent: In concert with TIF 97 Pedestrian Way project and the proposed Uptown
Development.

Estimated Cost: $1,330,000
Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

Parsons Switching Station

Location: Parsons Substation _
Character: Addition of switching equipment’
tr ausmission system Sor inci eased reIiabiIify

E: Snmated Cost: $1 050,000
Fiscal Year(s): 2016-17

Recloser Upgrades
Location: Barlow Substatiol
Chm acter: Upgt adm y

Washington Place Undel:g und Conversion (NEW)

Location: Post office located on Union St east down the south alley of State St ending at the
Park Place

Character: Convert existing overhead distribution facilities to underground.

Extent:. In concert with the Washington Place development.

Estimated Cost: $230,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

18




TRAVERSE CITY

/) LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN — 2015

,—\\3) :

(

DISTRIBUTION and SUBSTATION (continued):

Removal and transfer of Hickory Meadow distribution line to Randolph St. (NEW)
Location: Hickory Meadows, Hickory Hills and Randolph St.

Character: Removal of distribution lines and installation of new distribution including poles,
conduit and transformers.

Extent: Removal of the distribution line located in Hickory Meadows and along the driveway
of Hickory Hills replaced with a new line down R(ma'olph St:
Estimated Cost: $370,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

TRANSMISSION and SUBSTATIO!R

Substation Transformer Upgrades
Location: Parsons and Cass Road Substation ;
Character: Installation of higher rated transformers a
Extent: Upgrade existing substatioi traisformers for s)
Estimated Cost: $3 Million
Fiscal Year(s): 2019-20 through 2020 ;

ninended by Engin
n reliability due to load gt owth.

Transmission Line Re

West Side (Wayne Hill), Hammond, Barlow,

; _ude new poles and wire.
1sm:ssmn lines with new lines and higher

FACILITIE-_,' AND oTliggR:

Hastings Service C er Fac'ili: :zglmprovements
Location: 1131 Hasting.
Character: Site improven

0 existing facility

Extent: Construction of new ' Building C and an outdoor covered area for inventory and

equipment and renovations to the dispatch room,
Estimated Cost: $1,000,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16 through 2016-17

19




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —2015

),
-

i

SCADA, COMMUNICATIONS, and OTHER ITEMS:

Smart Metering Technologies (AMI) PILOT
Location: Enfire service area

Character: Electric meters and software to accommodate smart metering capabilities.

Extent: A program to provide for the migration to electronic smart meters that will assist utility
customers on energy use and reliability and provide reads to ! ity billing.

Estimated Cost: $2,250,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16 through 2018-19

SCADA System Replacement
Location: 1131 Hastings Street and Substations
Character: Installation of new SCADA equipni
Extent: Upgrade the system to allow it to intet
billing, GIS, OMS and other technologies.
Estimated Cost: $350,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16
JOINT TCL&P, CITY OF T

d:systems such as AMI,

nect with other rel

‘arid DDA PROJECTS:

Disaster Recovery Cent
Hg: ] g(lmeteAve

sed as a disaster recover "y center.

equipment for backup operations center for

I facilities to underground or rerouting facilities, if possible.
jor intersections throughout the City.

Esttmated Cost: Unkii
Fiscal Year(s): Various

Front St Lighting Circuits and Receptacles

Location: Downtown North and South along Front Street.
Character: Upgrade circuit to accommodate increased load
Extent: New conduit, wire, and addition of event outlets
Estimated Cost: $1,300,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2016-17 through 2017-18

20




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —2015

)
&

(€

((

7

JOINT TCL&P, CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY, and DDA PROJECTS
(continued):

W. Front Reconstruction from Pine St to Division St (CHANGE)
Location: W. Front Street from Pine St to Division Street
Character: New street lighting installations in conjunction with planned streetscape.
Extent: To be determined in coordination with City. o

Estimated Cost: $265,000
Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

Riverwalk Lighting (N Side of Boardman River).
Location: North Side of Boardman River from Fio
Character: New Boardman Riverwalk lighting
Extent: To be determined in coordination with:
Estimated Cost: $200,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2016-17

Cass & Lake Stl eet Stl eetscapes

St to Dam

& Uptown Developm

fo Etghrh St

Extent: To be determine:
Estimated Cost: 3350, )
Fiscal Year(s): 2015-1t

Garland Street Streetsc
Location: Garland Streetint the Warehouse District

Character: New street lighting installation in conjunction with planned streetscape.
Extent: To be determined in coordination with DDA.

Estimated Cost: $200,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

21




-_\\)' TRAVERSE CITY

% LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN — 2015

JOINT TCL&P, CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY, and DDA PROJECTS
(continued):

Park Street Streetscapes
Location: From State Street to Grandview Parkway

Character: New street lighting installation and underground existing overhead services.

Extent: Removal of existing fixtures/poles/wires in coordination with DDA project.

Estimated Cost: $100,000
Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

DlVlSlOll St Lighting (Eighth Street to Fourteenth 't
Location: Division St from Fourteenth St fo the.-Pa__A__ ;
Character: New street lighting installation a nderground existmg:f"
Extent: Removal of existing fixtures/poles/wires in coordination with Cify project.
Estimated Cost: $350,000

Fiscal Year(s): 2015-16

£) (NE

ree

Extent: Removal of e,usm:_' ‘___xtm es/poles/ ires in éb dination 'i'b:;"th City project.
Estimated Cost: $350,000 %
Fiscal Year(s): 2018

erhead services.

22




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 2015 - DRAFT

(This worksheet is for illustration purposes only and is supplemental information to the Plan)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Project Project 2014 Funding
2015-16 201617 201718 201819 2019-20 2020-21 Totals Notes Level Change
Generation:
| | Possible locations
| Community Solar Garden Phase Il (project to be g‘c‘;']‘;:;" :’\'ie“ '::"’"“5
INOICHANGES| similar as the 2013 joint TCL&P/Cherryland project - 250,000 250,000 (et hork. or 250,000 | [ § -
i No cost of land included - location to be determined) Traversefield Industdal
L Park.
‘[Decommission M-72 Wind Turbine (will be completed
j B 1y 613012015) . 200,000 || $ (200,000)
Total Generation 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 250,000 450,000 (200,000)
Distribution and Substation:
NO GHANGE |Line | ments, Extensi d New Services 900,000 950,000 1,000,000 1,100,000 1,160,000 1,200,000 6,300,000 [Annual Program . In- 5,950,000 || $ 350,000
NO CHANGE ine Improve , EXtensions, an e e 3 ] ) 'y y (] 1 3 ¥ » ¥ ¥ house construction { 3 4
| Distribution Circuit Rebuild (completion of BW-31 in Annual Program - In-
12015-16) 950,000 1,000,000 1,050,000 1,100,000 1,160,000 1,200,000 6,450,000 Hoibe sonsticHsn 6,150,000 || & 300,000
|69kV/13.8kV Distribution South Substation (wlll be _ |In-service date
| completed by 6/30/2015) 1213172014 s el | B e
| OH to URG Conversion Projects (residential projects Annual Program to
to enhance system reliablliity - 2015-16 includes 350,000 450,000 550,000 650,000 750,000 850,000 3,600,000 [move Inaccessible 2,000,000 (| $ 1,600,000
Spruce Street Undergrounding) clrcuits to road ROW
Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion Coordinated with City
(increased extent to Include uptown deyelopment 1,330,000 ml . " . . 1,330,000 |and DDA Pededstrian 1,665,000 | | § (335,000)
undergrounding - includes added circuit to support Bridge Project
Front Street reliabiiity during peak times)
1 No requests have been
Street Lighting System - Expanded (Central received for additional
| = e = =3 . e " |neighborhood lighting 200,000 | | $ (200,000)
projects
| Cowell Famlly Cancer Center Alternate Feed
| (redundant feed for the Cancer Center - will be - --- - -- - 190,000 || $ (190,000)
S completed by 6/30/2015)
HANGE |Parsons Switching Station - 1,050,000 - e 1,050,000 700,000 | [ $ 350,000
| CHANGE |Recloser Upgrades 175,000 --= --- 176,000 200,000 || $ (25,000)
Street Lighting (LED) System Replacements
(accelerated funding to complete 400 changeovers a 180,000 60,000 --- 240,000 420,000 | [ $ (180,000)
year)
Washington Place Underground Conversion 230,000 == - 230,000 -{1$ 230,000
Removal and transfer of Hickory Meadows 1 | . . _
pEv distribution line to Randolph Street =000 i 370,000 ¥ 370,000
Total Distribution and Substation 4,485,000 3,510,000 2,600,000 2,850,000 3,050,000 3,250,000 19,745,000 20,875,000 (1,730,000)
Transmission and Substation:
¢ Substation Transformer Upgrades === - 1,500,000 1,500,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
el e e pep S e 1,665,000 600,000 1,500,000 600,000 4,365,000 4,275,000 90,000
transmission project In 2015-16)
Total Transmission and Substation 1,665,000 600,000 1,500,000 600,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 7,365,000 7,275,000 90,000

23




Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Project Project 2014 Funding
2015-16 201617 2017-18 2018-19 Totals Notes Level Change
Facilities and Other:
' | Stringing Trailer (will be purchased by 6/30/2015) - --- - - --- - - 60,000 (60,000)
| Telephone System Upgrade (will be completed by sl . Ml i}
16130/2015) 65,000 (65,000)
Meter Test Board (will be purchased by 6/30/2015) s == - - 40,000 (40,000)
System Modeling Software (will be purchased by L n )
6/30/2015) 80,000 (80,000)
Hasting Service Center Facility Improvements (new
Building C and covered storage area for inventory and o
equipment - covered storage in 2015-16 along with 19,000 410,000 1:000,000 1,300,000 {ARaae)
renovations in the dispatch room)
Total Facilities and Other 430,000 570,000 1] 0 0 0 1,000,000 1,645,000 (545,000)
SCADA, Communications, and Other ltems:
E | Smart Metering Technologies (AMI) PILOT 50,000 200,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 aen 2,250,000 |Airport Industrial Park 2,250,000 -
SCADA System Replacement 350,000 aen - - 350,000 350,000 -
Substation Security Cameras (project will be i o] o] B . R
completed by 6/30/2015)
Work Order and Asset Management Software System ) L a i R
s (will be purchased by 6/30/2015) £2.600 (82,000)
Total SCADA, Communications, and Other Items 400,000 200,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0 2,600,000 2,692,000 (92,000)
Joint TCL&P, City of Traverse City, and DDA Projects
|Disaster Recovery Center (renovation of DPS building —
to include installation of equipment for backup 250,000 100,000 350,000 | S o0 l‘,’“’“m; 350,000 -
operational site - in coordination with City)
Corridor Improvement Projects (in coordination with Project costs unknown
City) ™ =7 = “ |at this time. - :
Upgraded Front Street Lighting Clrcuits and - 650,000 650,000 . i 1,300,000 800,000 500,000
Receptacles
W. Front Street Reconstruction from Pine Street to
Division Street (project expanded from Oak Street to 265,000 — e --- 265,000 150,000 115,000
Division Street)
NO/GHANGE |Riverwalk Lighting (N Side of Boardman River) 200,000 200,000 |SrnstFundieg 200,000 5

24




Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Project Project 2014 Funding
2015-16 201617 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 Totals Notes Level Change
\NGE ‘ Cass & Lake Street Streetscapes 350,000 --- 350,000 ﬁs::ia[ AsseRsatan 350,000 || $ -
East Front Street Streetscapes 400,000 400,000 |SPecial Assessment 400,000 || $ -
| NOIGHANGE |Gariand Street Streetscapes 200,000 gononn |JECCRIAsiement 300,000 || $ {100,000)
(ND CHANGE |Park Street Streetscapes 100,000 = #inyip [Ererelassssmment 100,000 || $ -
NEW Division Street Lighting (Eighth Street to Fourteenth 350,000 il 350,000 Als 350,000
Street)
NEW Eighth Street Decorative Lighting (Woodmere Avenue 350,000 L 350,000 [Scheduled for 2017-18 s 350,000
to Lake Avenue)
Total Joint TCL&P, City of Traverse City and DDA Projects 1,265,000 1,100,000 750,000 750,000 0 0 3,865,000 2,650,000 515,000
TOTAL 8,495,000 $ 5,980,000 $ 5,850,000 $ 5,200,000 $ 4,550,000 $ 4,750,000 $ 34,825,000 35,487,000 $ (1,962,000)
FIBER FUND PROJECTS:
Funding to come
) .- - - --- - s - |from Downtown 700,000 || $ (700,000)
L S Development Authority
Total Fiber Fund Projects - $ - 3 - $ - $ - § - § - 700,000 § (700,000)

(Actual fiscal year that a profect may be undertaken may differ from the fiscal year depicted in this spreadsheet.

Dollar amounts are estimates for Information only and are not a part of the official Plan.)

25




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: Januvary 20, 2015

Subject: Strategic Planning Board Update

Attached is a report to the Board on the Strategic Plan - 2014 Business Goals. Staff will provide
the Board with a year-end summary as a starting point for updating the Plan with 2015 goals.

Staff has already met and assigned each strategic objective team with reviewing their goals and
providing input on new goals for the Board’s consideration. At your February 10" meeting staff
will present those new staft directed goals to the Board. In addition, the Board will be asked to
provide any input it may have on its goals for the organization, or a change in the priority of the
goals presented.

Staff will take all of this information and update the Plan and seek Board approval at its February
24" meeting.

26




1/21/2015

_ Strategic Planning

O 2 I N PV AT B TN DY S T I S TR B Rrle el

Quarterly Update — January 2015 s
A Year in Review

._--::;:“':;_\ TRAVERSE CITY
“%=3 LIGHT & POWER

Bl et Out gy m¥ou

TRAVERSE CITY

23] LIGHT & POWER

Irering Ous Eemeyy tn o

2014 A Year in Review

o Staff will review all Business Goals that were set
for 2014

« Any Business Goals with a 2015 deadline are
being reviewed by staff for inclusion in the 2015
Strategic Plan and will be discussed at the
February 10 Regular Meeting




~) TRAVERSE CITY

"
\5&23) LIGHT & POWER

Financial Stability
« Develop an improved Key Accounts Program by

September 1, 2014.
o IN PROCESS — To be included in the 2015 Plan as
an on-going Business Goal
« Enhance public engagement through quarterly
performance reporting to the Board and public
(on-going).
o COMPLETED

(V™ TRAVERSE CITY

825 LIGHT & POWER

Bl g G Bragy Vo

Power Supply Strategy

« Educate the Board in power supply by July 1, 2014.
« COMPLETED

« Evaluate power supply options to replace the
Lansing Agreement by December 31, 2014.
« COMPLETED

» Develop a tool/matrix based on Board input
measuring the utility’s risk tolerances of different
power supply options, including increased
renewable energy requirements, by September 30,
2014.
o COMPLETED

1/21/2015

28




TRAVERSE CITY

“823) LIGHT & POWER

Ml imesing O Eravgy In Ve

System Reliability & Power Quality

» Annually review, enhance and develop system maintenance
rograms ensuring Average Service Availability Index
F“A AI”) remains above 99.970%.
= IN PROCESS
« Develop a rating system by October 31, 2013 to prioritize
capital system improvements, to be updated annually.
s IN PROCESS
« Formalize the Storm Restoration Plan by March 31, 2014.
« COMPLETED
« Create a program for coordination of projects between
TCL&P, other city departments, and other utilities by March 1,
2014.
= JN PROCESS

TRAVERSE CITY

5] LIGHT & POWER

B iy O By

Technology

« Enhance video security monitoring at TCL&P’s facilities
by June 30, 2014.
« IN PROCESS
» Implement a new citywide work order management
system by September 30, 2014.
= DELETED
« Install and implement an Integrated Voice Response
(IVR) system for outage management by December 31,
2014.
= IN PROCESS
« Safeguard the utility from cyber threats to stay current
with industry standards (on-going).
= ON-GOING

1/21/2015

20




TRAVERSE CITY

=
57 LIGHT & POWER

Imvaring Our Erargy 'a Vou

High Quality Workforce

Maintain a safe work environment by creating a Safety Development
Plan by June 30, 2014.

= COMPLETED

Continue to implement 2013 Efficiency Study recommendations
that will foster a work environment that encourages professional
development for the betterment of the organization (on-going).

= Revise and include in 2015 Plan

Develop a plan by December 31, 2014 that measures the
organization’s efforts to attract and retain qualified candidates.

= To be included in 2015 Plan

Enhance and formalize a Board Development Plan by June 30, 2014
that assists the board to make educated decisions in the best
interests of the utility.

= COMPLETED

TRAVERSE CITY
) LIGHT & POWER

B vt Cur Erargy In Vou

Customer Satisfaction

Maintain a customer satisfaction rating above 95%.

= ON-GOING

Maintaining residential rates within the top 25" percentile of
lowest rates in the state (on-going).

s ON-GOING

Develop a communications strategy for residential and
commercial customers by June 30, 2014.

= COMPLETED

Continually analyze new and current value-added programs to
meet or exceed tI‘;e customer expectations of its utility.

= ON-GOING

Develop an improved Key Accounts Program by September 1,
2014.

= Reported under Financial Stability

1/21/2015

30




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JANUARY 27, 2015

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller W
Date: January 18, 2015

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the first quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

A goal of the strategic plan is to enhance public engagement through quarterly performance reporting to the
Board and Public. As part of the process in reaching this goal, staff reviewed several other utility’s financial
reports and compiled the following reporting model, which consists of a balance sheet, summary income
statement with monthly, annual and year to date budget comparisons, cash flow and supplementary information
which consist of sale and purchase power data. The significant changes include a cash flow and supplementary
information, which were not provided in the past. The cash flow provides you a snapshot of what the utility’s
cash resources and outlays are during a specific time period and the supplementary information provides you
more detailed information on the utility’s largest revenue, utility sales and largest disbursement, purchased
power. Additionally, the income statement comparisons are showed on one page rather than two in previous
reports. Staff welcomes any feedback regarding future enhancements with this new reporting model.

Electric Utility Fund:

As of September 30, 2014 (25% through the fiscal year) operating revenues are 28% of budgeted operating
revenues. Overall revenues have increased over priot year as expected with the PCR uncapping as of October 1,
2013.

Total operating expenses are at 22.5% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget with purchase power
costs at 23.3%, distribution costs at 18.72% lower than expected due to higher capitalization of wages than what
was budgeted and expenses incurred subsequent to the period end date. Public service expense at 19.27% with
the energy optimization funds not fully expended. General administration expenses at 17.07%, similar to the
distribution expenses with expenses expected to be incurred later in the fiscal year.

Net income through the first quarter is $2.3 million, which is approximatety $800,000 increase over the prior
yeat.

Cash flows shows approximately $1,000,000 expended in capital assets, mostly for the South Substation capital
project.

Fiber Fund:

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are on-budget while expenses are 37.9% of budget year-to-date. Salaries and related
fringe benefits attribute to the higher percentage than 25%, time through the fiscal year, because of more time
being allocated to fiber maintenance at the beginning of the fiscal year than expected. The Fund has a net
income or change in net position of $8,837 or 12% of budgeted net income.

31




888°1¢T'7T § STUDLUISIAUL PUE YSEI [EI0 ],
799°999°SL uompsod 30U [30),  LLT'TEH'SL SIOSSE [FI0L
TRO°99F LT paoLisaIun) 198" vEr 6y 5}9SSE JUALINI-UOU [€)0,],
0850078 sjasse [endes ul paiseAu]
uworusod JaN 1LT9ET by 19U ‘pareroaldep Sureq s1esse [ende)
219°899°7 ssaaBoad wr uonoNISu0D)
169°66€°1 SIUDWIAOIAW] pUL] pUe pue]
9€8°¢0< JUSWUIAOT ATewiLid WOIJ S0P - SSUBADE ULI-SUO]
SHF'RCE 1988% JJeusq wewkoidwgsed U0
PI9°S9L°T SatMqIqer| [E10L §13SSE JUALIMI-UON
££9°TO1 saouasqe peresuadwory OIF L66°ST SJISSE JUALIND [EI0 ]
SAUPQEBI[ WI)-FU0Y
LTLY9 sosuadxa predaig
186°T09°T SIIGEI] JUILIND [BJ0], TLO'S6Y'T S2UOTUSAUJ
£8T°L19 bi=lhiTe)
- saxe ],
168°CIZ waureieaod Arewud 03 ongg L8798 1S3I31UI PANIDOY
966°S soouasqe patesuadwo) 651°7E5°E (pun,] 1omod pue WSTT) SIUNOIOE [qLOI[0dUN 10T
0LS'ST INUDAII POULBIU[] COT°6L2$ JO SOOUEMO[[E 5521 “I9W0Isny
£18°06 spsodap Jowolsny) SO|QRAISONY
98Y°9CL SIUITIQe] Yo pue sosuadxs pamiosy SPLP96°CL SIUDUISDAU]
§OT'RES’T aiqeded spunodoy A WATA 3 sjuoeAlnbe yses pue yse)
S B JUILINY) $]ISSE JUIEIND)
NOILISOd L3N ANV SHILI'TIEVI'T SLASSY
$107 ‘0€ AAGWALIAS

NOILISOd LIN 40 INHIWALV.LS

GNOA 2TILOATA

(UESIYA *AND ISIFARLL, JO AN Y3 Jo puf} Jmauedwo)) v)

AIMO4 ANV LHDIT ALID HSYIAVIL

32



%408ET L9E 08681 CETOOLS 00990 T (£8¢°877) 919'v66"¢ CETISLS grszln) 9% FLE 1 L¥6' 1981
i0/Ala# (gecrag|) £eege| - £ET9gl - [ 509°6% - C09'6¢
%yl €L TEF 08 SLSITI 000°$T6 06L°91 L8L 0T 8.5°1T1 946'T1 16892 £LE6E
%6 TE 295°T0LT $CFLTLL 0007050 TEQ'S9 R0FTIT1 8EFLIC (2148} 0SUsLy CEL'6SY
%8¥ LT Q£T'2TSC QLLTLIT 000°566°F {1L5°€07) 1P 9LE T OLL'TLLL (ssrezn) 06E ¥t 867 1FE
%8T 1T 2060LEE 860°C96 000955 ¥ LLYTLET 179°LTL 860°556 FIVTE LY16HT 2967162
%9CLI +09'16€°T 96£°THS 000 68T 820°S $9¢°L6F 96$°T0¢ 656 ShI¥61 FOU'L61
%9L 7T 0S0'vTL'y 0617651 0S99 (556°901) SHL66F| 06172681 (060°2T) L10°68Y LTE19%
%L8 11 0Z6 1011 0EF 81 0SE°05TT (L1¥8L5) 98'9TS S STI L8FLE {18697) 908
%P7 9¢ FRICLI 91+'86 009147 10V'9% 910°TE 91¥86 9116, {6LT°FE) LESOF
%07 8T (L69°75€°9T) CO1'SHE'01 008'004'9€ £00'1ZL 001796 CO18rE 01 8£9"L79 98£°698'T FI0'S6L'E
%l6 0F (#86'790) 91511 009'+LT £8TL'6S) PPTTLL SISCIL 96£'01) 6YI'ES £SL'TF
%000 000°0%¢ - (000"09¢) - - - - - -
%l ey {eL1°g11) L7898 0007007 (sTseg) TegoTl Lz8°98 {r8T's) 90< 1TT9¢
%96'C (gcrere) 9701 009°¢sE (997} §2L0L 9701 {189°7) $96'S FIEE
%L1EL {652°1€) 1+¥L'F 000"9E #8¢ 8EIY ItLF TTE - oy
%0¢°ET {PIS¥E) 9801 000°¢t (61507 SO0LE 98%'01 Ll 8L9°T €69°C
%L1°6T (826'088°1) TTLYLL 00L'659'C (5+9'97) L9E°108 TLLYLL (6L9'57) 8€T'08T7 $SS'YST
9465 9% (S6%'61) SOO°L! 005°9¢ 1699 L0£°01 S00°LL 859 PIFE TLO'Y
%6T 6T (89T°CPL 1) TEL'OTL COOISH'T (s7€'9%) LSO°LSL TELOTL (0g0/9T) zloTee T86°6ET
%STSI (oL1) 0g 00z (T £Fl 0g - - -
2%4TE8E (065°17) 01r¢l 000°sE 50T S0T'EL ol¥'el (¢¢8) 08F'9 L¥9'S
%696 (10£°8%) 6679 000°c9 (Ls6'1) LST'8 66T°9 (9191 WY 996
%EL 6T (psL'0¥) oFTLI 000°88 898y $6£T1 9¥TLL SPIT 0s1'F £6T9
%708 (5£9°60€'+2) So8"09+6 00S*0LL'EE 9.£'L08 064°€59'8 $98°09¢'6 £1L€99 000°7£5"C CLL'S6TE
%I FT (5009} £O8'61 006°6L (Fzen) 68971 $o8'81 Sgel L8T9 'L
%t ¥T (vrezs) SLT6Y 009°10T (rv8+1) 0zI'%9 9LT6F ovs 610°91 65591
%L8 O (cTLz81) 087971 000°60¢ 086°S 00£°0T1 08T9T1 vl L £9€'3T 96079
%LE 8T (C8s 1L L) 0TFSS0E Q00T0LL 0L 769°69§ STLBSY'T OTH S0 01€°L9T €IT608 £TSTLON
%00'8T (isL'ese 11} 617°9TF'y 000°018°51 £60°6T! 9TI'10Ey 61T°9Zr'y TIT'E8T $LEIETT 009 %1871
9%E0'LT (S61°918F) §  SOS'ELI 0co00s's S I sLTLEL §  LTS969°1 $  s0%esL T ¢ W TSen! §  OvL¥rr §  1IE'8KS §
195png (d1qeaoagju) 1enay 1aspnyg U (] JER A JoLLy ey WAL A2 X a01ag eny
Jo gy, IjqBIOAR EP 0} JEDA prpuIlY JJEP 01 IED A NEP 0} AVI X BP0} IBI X EP 0} PUOY NEP 0 YIUOIA P 0 IUOTy
uostiedmor) Aep 03 J€X 0] 3ASpnyg vosIed ey 183 X 0) ABIA uosLedwo)) oy o3 YIuow

o
sosuadxo 1omod u"ﬂ;&:n_s
SIDENUOS [BIRIR]IG

FED NIGPUE]

weid (200 WAL APE
el (20D jIogdwe)
SUIGIn [, UOnSNQuosy
S1owoD) foucg

28pug Juisue]

OSIN

sasuadxe 1amod aseyemd uoy

asuadxa uenraaurn)
SINUIAL [EI0 ],

sINUIAL Sunesadouou [E10 ],

SI0SSE JO IS U0 SSO[/UIEN)
SUIODUL 1599
SIUDWISINUIDY

JLLODUE [BIUI B[O
SLIODUL [BJUDY

sanuaAa Buneaadouoy]

SINUIANL SUNRLD0 43P0 ()0 ],

SNOJUE| [0S
awoaut OSIN

S1qap PEQ JO A22A030Y
deias jo oreg

Burqqol pue 2SIPUBYIIAIN
SIMOOSIP PAUOHO]

sanuasag Sunerado sy

SITES - SaINBIAAL Buneaado |e10f

SIy3i| preA
Funysiy 1eong
Auwzoyme oygng
[eLasnpu]
[ErI0WWey
[2HU9DISTY

SI|ES - SINUA Sunesd

FI0Z ‘0€ YAIWILIAS AAANT AOIHId HHL H0A
(QALIANYNA) TYLLDV ANV LEOANE - SISNAIXH ANV SANNIATT A0 ATNATHDS
AN DTILOITH

(ueSiyarpy ‘A1) 95a3A€L I JO A310) 241 Jo nu) Juauoduio) v)

HEMOd ANV LHOIT ALLD HSYHAVIL



34

£9L0°L95) $ 0Ig6rET §  0S0'081'T S [ 195518 S erTPEST 0§ 01serer S [ £89't9F $  06TSHE S piEUIS g uonsod 3ou uI 3FuEY))

9%TSLT LSPTLS'LT £62°866'L 05L0T5°5E (85516} 168'260'8 €6T'866"L $E6'791 960°L15'C 050'089'T sasuadxs 830,
%LLET 0T §T9'1 96L7905 000°ZEL'T 066'9¢ 908°65% 96L°905 86eT1 PLSOCT 7€6'891 uoledaadag
%858 61 00SHist 000°6LE 005°688°L 000°¢1 000°09¢ 000°5LE 000°S 000°0z!1 000'¢Z1 29 A0
%9L 0T $88°¢s PLIPL 00089 805 909'8 FLIFI {088) §59's SL9Y souBINSU|

sasuadxa 10

%LO'L1 iCrolL GLT'OFI 004958 (191°8) OFr¥61 6LT IV LLST £19%¢ 06¥'LS I503dX3 TOHEAISILILPE [RIILIS)

WLT 61 901°8p9 $69°F51 0087208 FAY A1 THF'9S F69°451 £15°¢S TLO'SL SHEIL A3 Mgng

WHL'TT £T0°LTY LT0°9T1 080°€5% 1#0°91 986601 LTO9T1 11162 199'91 SLLY Sununosdk Jowro)sn))

%88'ST 1L8°15T 676'LS 008'6<€ 6 C89°5L 6T6°L8 CTFE S6¥'9T 61662 UOISSIUSTEBLY,

%TL'81 S6%LE'E & S0STIL $  00L09%c  § PRLISESY) $  95T39L $  5S08'TTL $ W01) $  BETIST S CEIBLT 5 uonnqLIsI

«uﬂ—:_.n_ »unnn,.o\r«.—.nﬁv [enidy ﬂuu—u:m— uu:ehatmﬂ— JEIA AOLAg BNy U] 183N aclag |LALIBASS
gl ek... RPILTES DAL | EP 0] A¥IX PRpuany a«nﬁ 01 LN9> ehﬁv 0] .:3&. JJEP 0] I¥I A HEP 01 JIuoy AEP 01 JIO0Jy NED (3] ﬂaﬁcz
EOm_LuQEQU Jlep 01 JEIL OF uu.-w—udmm :ommhxn—EDU ..ﬁu,\qr 0} Lﬂy? :owuameOU YIUOTA]l 0] YIUGOJA]

F10Z *0€ JIINILJIAS JAANE GOIY3d FHL H04
(@ALIANYNMD) TYALDY ANV 1A9014 - SISNIAIXE ANV STANTATL 40 ITNAIAHIS
ANNA DTELDETH

(UESIYNA “AND) ASIIARL L, JO A1) 3y3 Jo nup) juauodwo)) y)

AIMOd ANV LHDI'T ALLD HSHHAVHL



eFI°L9T'8

9.5°65T’S

LOSTLTOE

68FFL6 T

L7898
799°L88°t

(9z5'956)

$S9°91

T9¥°01
LTTSI
(sc0’6)

0S6'766'T

(000°528)

(L68'858°L)

(zzo'zes
697°655°01

$

JBaA Jo pud ‘syuateainba ysed pue yse))
Ieak Jo FurmuSeq ‘sius[ealnbs ysen pue yse)
SIUSIBAITD? YSBD PUB YSED UL 95E3I0IP 19N
$AIANIE Bunsaaul Aq papraocad ysed jaN

SPUSPIAID PUE 1§812)U|
STUSWUISAALL JO 2fBS
SINANIE SUISIAUI WOLJ SMOY YSED)

siasse [endes Jo aseyony
$INIAIIE SUIdUEBUT] PIje[ad pue [euded Wolj smo[) YSED

sanAne Sunueuy [epdesuou g papraotd gses 19N

PoAL202] SIURTURSINGUILSY
DOALSSI SWOUL [BIUNY
pred susodap sewnoisnD

$a1}IANDE Supueuy [epdedeou Woay SO YseD

sannianoe suneladeo Aq papiaoad yses 1N

99y A1) Jo swowAed ysed
SOOIALSS pUB SPo0% J1oj siefddns o3 sjuowiied yse)
saoAojdwa 01 syuawked yse)y
SISTHOISNO WIOI] PAAIIIL USE))
sanialpe Sunesado woly sMolf ysed

$10T “0€ HAAWALIAS CIANT AOTIAd HHL 404
SAOTA HSVD 40 INTWALVLS
INNA OEIDITA

(UEBHPIIA K11 3512ABA ], JO A117) 2y} Jo Ju) 3uduodwmo)) v)

AIMAMO0d ANV LHOIT ALID HSHIAVYL

35



0o g +90°0 S 9YTETIIL'S & IT°L46'T98'T 8 SE6'ISE06 910°61£°6T 18304,
z1qeorjdde jou opqeonddzion  (L0'86E°LT) (0Z'$S+91) arqeandde jou sqeodde ou UOISSIISURL]
110 1110 €1°96€°T0S TETOLLGL 0£0'606" 120°65L°1 s1ow107y A2U0}G
+5070 ¥S0°0 0L LLSTIT) 98'TLE 6L [T6'15T°C PELUEEL SeD) [HIpue]
692°0 8810 TEB60°696 LY 1967162 YLE'LBSE SOT18S°L SUIGIR ], WONSNQLIOS
FLO0 LLO0 FSLEYLTEL P& TEL GOy LLE098°LT TF6'L30°9 12AR 3 Pg
¥50°0 LFO0 010LLTLLL 6LLESIFE CE0LLIT 90T 1FEL 4 (ogduwen
L10°0 £To0 00°€EE'9¢! 00'$09'6% 000°Z61°S 000'889°C enuo’ [erelyg
£90°0 £50°0 LO9T8 LI 69°196'91 00C'S0L'T (00L'918) OSIN
LF00 g 8F0°0 £ L8681°E6E°T 8 ZLOT6'19F % 000TLY 6T 000°F99°6 a3pug Juisue]
1P 01 JTIL YIuou 1500 1502 nep Juow YIAM0d TASYHIEND

Y1 I0F AL M1 105 YA TP 01 ABIX Aqauopy 03 1234 HAAM HAM

10d 1507 Jad 1500

SIEMIDDE AJFUOU JO SS1EII JUILUEI)E]S JWOUI 0] D2USE JOU OP SINUIADY 010N
S8#°08T°6 S FL0'9TEE s LFGOLTIS SLLOESOE SIES [BICL
910070 L6LT0 £i8i0 91Z0°0 6F91°0 S981°0 6LETS 6ELCT L66°63T $8TLTI sydr] 19008 pue pieg
622070 LLLOO S001°0 90200 +6L0°0 00010 0L8'1€T'E LEL060"Y 06+ 0€1°EE 058'T06°01 SIEG [BrRSNpU]
0TL00 1660°C [121°0 1F20°0 6860°0 0gC1'e 9T6'SEE™Y 0r9°EoL FL8'TIS'SE L91°LEC ! SO[ES [E12IRWWOT
FZT0'0 3 85600 310 LETO0 3 8560°0 S $STl0 $ OLL'09%'L $ SLELYY g S5 CH'TL SLYEOI'S SIS [EINOpPISTY
JIULLIEA 238D 03 2%p IUELLEA yruow Yuow 2NUIADT IHUIADL ep yruow SAAVS

23Ep 01 JEAA asak gonrg 0} JEDX Ayzuow Ied4 Jo1LJ WILIND DJEP 01 AEIA, Aqauom] 0) 2638 HAAW HMNM

SIBG/ONUIADY SIES/INUIATY

PI0T ‘0 WAIANALJAS JAANT AOIEd FHL 40
NOLLYINIOANI AUV INTNI TS
QNOA DTHLOATE

(meSIgorIAL “A1) aS19AEA L, 30 AD 911 Jo puf} Jusuodwo) )

AIMOd ANV LHDIT ALID ISHIAVHL

36



506°665'1 gonisod Jou fe30], TTLLTYT $)ISSE [B30],
(012°82) (121ap) paleLsaIun
S19°8Z79°1 spesse [eudes UL paisaal]
SIE'LT SIIqE] [e30 L SY98TY1 $)3SSE JUALIND-UOU [BI0 ],
9TT1 Sa0usqe paresuaduwo)) e 1 10U *poleioaldep Suraq s1osse jende)
SaNIIqEl] ULId) 3uo| TRT68E ssos5oad ur uononysue)
SIOSSE JOALINI-UON
680797 SIPILQEI] JUILIND [RIO]
(€6€°D) $1955E JUILIND [E10],
For11 JUSWLDA0T Lrewrud o3 ang]
OLT'¥1 DMNUIADL POULIBIU[] G99 sasusdxe predaig
0T SOUIIQRI] JAUI0 PUE sasuadxe panIaoy 01 2]GRAI0AI SIUNOIDY
151 alqeded sjunosoy (g90°z $ sjuaeAnbs yses pue ysed
SN[ EI] JUALIN)) $JSSE JUALIND)
NOILLISOd LBN ANV STILITIGVIT SLIASSY
$107 ‘0 FAGINILITS
NOILISOd L3N A0 INAIWALVLS
aNOg YIdIA

{ueSigaty ‘A1) 3savaeL], 10 ApDy a1} Jo pup) Juauodwo)) v)

~ YIMOd ANV LHOIT ALLD ISHIAVEL

37



(c1£°¢9) $ S06'665'T §  BITCYL  §
- 890°165°1 8907165}
(cre'eod L£8°8 0SI°TL

%00°0 (000°¢) - 000°¢
(€regs) LE88 0SI°L9

L85'LTI £94°8r 050°9L1

%<0°5T CiYLY LTSTT 000'06

%00°0 0911 - 09r°Tl

%E8°99 651 1¥6'T 00rYy

%¥FS 61 €88 €1z 0011

2%00°0 000 - 000¢

%00°T 088'¢S 0Z1 000°9

%00°0 000°T - 000°C

%00°0 00¢ - 00§

%0070 000°1 - 0001

%0070 000°¢ - 000°¢

%Pt 91 1491 62¢ 0007

%S TF 919'T1 16 0£6'02

%P0 Th Cr6'LT L1o'et 096°0€

%95°€T (0067581} & 00E°LE $  00TCHE $

WIpng Jo (3qeaoaeun)) enoy Jaspng
uuﬂunuu..u.m qeaosey NEP O IBIX papudwry’

JEIA Jo pud ‘uonisod jap
Ieak Jo SuuuiSag ‘uonrsod 1N
nonised 1ou up 25ueg)

STUIIUISINGLUITH
$aNU2A2J Sunesadouos

awosul Suneiad
sasuadxa Sunzeaado [vro ]

uonemadag]

293 AUD

[EIY APIUIA

OURINSLUY

JuatdoRAID [BUOISS2JOId

ENIORIUCY PUE [BUOISSIJ0I]

SINOQ UOTJBUIULIS |,

SUQNR[[EISU! JOUIOISNT)

pumosgiepun]

PESIAAD

sorpddng

SIJaUaQ STULL]

$aZem PUE SALR[ES
s3suadxa sunesadQ

$901A108 10] SI3IRYD)
SN sunEIIdO

$10Z “0€ YAIINZ LIS CIANT JOTIIAJI THL WO
NOILISOd LAN NI STONVHD
ANV SESNFIXT “SHANIATY 40 INFWIALVIS
AaNNA ¥AdI1d

(ueBnyory “AnD asxval Jo AN 941 yo yrup) 3sduodwo) )

dIMOd ANV LHDIT ALID HSYIAVIAL

38



